

Kalypso/Zodiak Digital production switcher	
Menu Panel Recovery CD Procedure Version 2.0	
071817701 MARCH 2006	
00000000000000000000000000000000000000	

Contacting Grass Valley

Region	Voice	Fax	Address	Web Site
North America	(800) 547-8949 Support: 530-478-4148	Sales: (530) 478-3347 Support: (530) 478-3181	Grass Valley P.O. Box 599000	www.thomsongrassvalley.com
Pacific Operations	+852-2585-6688 Support: 852-2585-6579	+852-2802-2996	USA	
U.K., Asia, Middle East	+44 1753 218 777	+44 1753 218 757		
France	+33 1 45 29 73 00			
Germany, Europe	+49 6150 104 782	+49 6150 104 223		

Copyright © Grass Valley. All rights reserved.

Grass Valley Web Site

The <u>www.thomsongrassvalley.com</u> web site offers the following:

Online User Documentation — Current versions of product catalogs, brochures, data sheets, ordering guides, planning guides, manuals, and release notes in .pdf format can be downloaded.

FAQ Database — Solutions to problems and troubleshooting efforts can be found by searching our Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) database.

Software Downloads — Software updates, drivers, and patches can be downloaded.

Contents

Section 1 — Menu Panel Recovery CD Procedure 5
Introduction
Before You Begin
Menu Panels Identification
Attach Mouse and Keyboard
Record IP Addresses
Configure BIOS to Boot From CD
Reconfigure BIOS after Using Recovery CD
Create a Backup Image File 10
Create Backup Image of Working System 12
Recovery Procedures 16
Restore Image From Backup Partition 16
Restore Default Image From Recovery CD 21
Reinstall Software
Check IP Addresses
Create Backup Image 28
Reconfigure Menu Panel BIOS 28

Contents

Menu Panel Recovery CD Procedure

Introduction

This procedure describes the use of a bootable Recovery CD shipped with your Kalypso or Zodiak Menu panel that is used to restore or create a backup of the working system image of the hard drive used in the panel. The Menu panel contains a single board computer (SBC) running Windows 2000.

If the hard drive in the Menu panel becomes corrupted, the Recovery CD provides emergency reboot capability. This is done by booting up on the CD and restoring a backup image from a second, backup partition on the Menu panel hard drive or a default image of the Windows 2000 NTFS system partition on the Recovery CD. This eliminates the need to replace a corrupted hard drive or a complete Menu panel assembly in the field.

The Recovery CD also provides a means to backup a working system to the backup partition for emergency recovery. Just prior to shipment from the factory, all new or replacement Menu panel hard drives have their primary NTFS partition (Windows 2000) and default Kalypso or Zodiak Menu panel application backed up to a factory image file located in an **Recovery** folder on a second partition. In case of a system failure, you can use this image or one you have created to restore your system or use the default image from the Recovery CD.

In summary, the Recovery CD can be used for any of the following conditions:

- When the Menu panel hard drive has become corrupted,
- For creating a new backup image of a working system partition after a successful software upgrade, and
- Creating a backup after configuring the Encore Machine Control software on a Kalypso system.

Instructions for using the Recovery CD are given in the sections listed below with a link to their page number.

- Before You Begin (page 6)
- Configure BIOS To Boot From CD (page 10)
- Create a Backup Image File (page 11)
- Recovery Procedures (page 17)

Before You Begin

Read this section before you begin any of the procedures to note any cautionary statements and do any recommended procedures.

CAUTION Do not run this CD procedure until you have read the instructions given here. Rebooting with the CD or creation of the backup partition will overwrite hard drive configuration completely, including user files stored on the hard drive.

Menu Panels Identification

These procedures apply to all Zodiak Menu panels and newer or replacement Kalypso Enhanced Menu panels. The newer Menu panels used on Kalypso can be distinguished from the older version by noting the following characteristics:

- No upper level menu pushbuttons on the left of the Menu panel, and
- An internal CD-ROM drive is installed on the right side of the Menu panel.

Attach Mouse and Keyboard

You will need to have a standard PS/2 mouse and keyboard attached to the Menu panel to do these procedures as the Touch Screen will not be operatational. If you need to attach a mouse and keyboard, power the Menu panel down before attaching them. Power down the Menu panel by turning off power inside the Main panel. The mouse and keyboard connectors are clearly labeled on the bottom of the Menu panel.

Record IP Addresses

If the Menu panel application is still operational, record the Hardware IP address settings for the Video Processor frame and Main panel in the Menu panel Eng Setup – System – Config menu (Figure 1). These IP address will be overwritten if you are using the Factory default image from the Recovery CD to restore the hard drive. They provide the pathways between the Menu panel and the Video Processor frame and Main panel.

To locate the IP address information on the Menu panel:

- **1.** If still operational, open the Menu panel application on the Menu panel touch screen to the Home menu.
- 2. Touch the **Eng Setup** button on the Home menu. Touch the **System** category button at the bottom of Eng Setup to bring up the System menu. Touch the **Config** button in the System pane on the left to bring up the Config menu shown in Figure 1.
- **Note** The screen shot in Figure 1 shows the default IP addresses for the Zodiak switcher. Make note of the IP addresses for your own switcher.

3. Record the values for the IP addresses exactly as shown in the hardware pane. On Zodiak systems (shown in Figure 1), the Frame IP and RT Panel IP addresses will need to be entered after re-configuring the hard drive. On Kalypso systems (not shown), the Frame IP and Still Store IP (if the Still Store option is installed) will need to be entered after hard drive re-configuration.

Last Menu Home	Eng Setup - Config
System Node Def Suite Def Aux Panel	Hardware Frame Ip 192.168.54.18 RT Panel 192.168.55.8
Clock Config	Trace Test Clock
	CPL CPL Pic Log
	Send Trace To
	Debug Wnd File
Save Sources Output	Ports & Router System Install Devices Router System

Figure 1. IP Addresses in Status & Diags Menu (Zodiak Menu Shown)

Also, if possible record the Windows 2000 TCP/IP address using the standard Windows 2000 interface. You may use the touch screen to access the Windows settings but you will need to use a mouse and keyboard connected to the Menu panel for entering or changing the IP address values. To record the current Menu panel address do the following.

- 1. Go to the following location in Windows 2000: Start\Settings\Network and Dial-up Connections.
- 2. Touch the Local Area Connection icon to bring up the Local Area Status Dialog Box, then press the Properties button.
- **3.** Touch the **Internet Protocol (TCP/IP)** line in the list window to bring up the **Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) Properties** dialog box (Figure 2).
- **Note** The screen shot in Figure 2 on page 9 shows the default IP addresses for the Zodiak switcher. Make note of the IP addresses for your own switcher.

Figure 2.	Menu Panel	l IP Addresses	(Zodiak Menu Shown)
-----------	------------	----------------	---------------------

Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) Propertie	es ? X
General	
You can get IP settings assigned auton this capability. Otherwise, you need to a the appropriate IP settings.	natically if your network supports ask your network administrator for
O Obtain an IP address automatical	ly 🔤
Use the following IP address: —	
IP address:	192.168.54.8
Subnet mask:	255.255.255.0
Default gateway:	192.168.54.1
C Obtain DNS server address autor	natically
$\vdash \odot$ Use the following DNS server add	dresses:
Preferred DNS server:	· · ·
Alternate DNS server:	<u> </u>
	Advanced
	OK Cancel

- **4**. In the **IP address** field, note the Menu panel IP address assigned.
- 5. Note the Subnet mask value (255.255.255.0).
- **6.** Note the IP address in the **Default gateway** field.
- **7.** Record these IP address values in case you need to re-enter them later after restoring the hard drive.

Configure BIOS to Boot From CD

To boot up from the Recovery CD it is necessary to configure the Menu panel CMOS Setup to boot first from the Recovery CD and then from the hard drive.

To change this setting:

- Reboot the Menu panel by pressing the Menu Reset button (Zodiak) or Menu Panel Reset (Kalypso) inside the Main panel, or use the Reset button on the back of the Menu panel.
- **2.** Enter the CMOS setup sequence by pressing the **Delete** button on the keyboard as soon as Menu panel processor begins to boot.

Once you are on the CMOS Setup Utility screen do the following:

- 3. Arrow down to BIOS Features Setup and hit Enter.
- 4. Arrow down to **Boot Sequence** and press **Page Down** until the sequence reads **CDROM**, **C**, **A**.
- 5. Press ESC.
- 6. Press F10 to save and exit.

Reconfigure BIOS after Using Recovery CD

After using the Recovery CD for making a backup or restoring an image, it is recommended that you reconfigure the Menu panel BIOS back to the default boot sequence to avoid unexpected boot errors during normal operation.

Follow the procedure above and return the boot sequence to **C**, **CDROM**, **A**.

Create a Backup Image File

You may use the **Create Image** function to create a backup of your working system at any time not only after a system failure. Backup is recommended every time you install a new version of software or make other major system changes. A backup image is made at the factory for every system before it ships.

Before you create a backup image file you must verify that there are two partitions on the Menu panel hard drive. To determine if your hard drive has been partitioned, do the following:

- 1. Place the Recovery CD in the Menu panel CD-ROM drive on the right of the Menu panel and restart the system, or reboot the Menu panel (inside the Main panel lid or on the underside of the Menu panel).
- **Note** If you are using a Menu panel mounted with a Flush Mount kit, you will need to unrack the panel and use the local CD-ROM drive on the right side of the panel. This procedure will not work with the external USB CD-ROM drive.
- The PowerQuest DeployCenter ImageCenter software on the Recovery CD will start automatically on the Menu panel screen (Figure 3). You will be given a choice to either Create Image, Restore Image or Disk To Disk (not used in this procedure).



Figure 3. DeployCenter ImageCenter

- **3.** Click on **Create Image**. The **Select Source Partitions** screen (Figure 4) will display all of the partitions on the Menu panel hard drive.
- **Note** The size of your hard drive and partitions may be different than what is shown here depending on when your system was manufactured and shipped.

Menu panels set up at the factory should have an **NTFS** and a **FAT** partition in addition to any unallocated space as illustrated in Figure 4.

Note If only one partition appears in the list, it will be necessary to first partition the drive using the procedure in *Restore Default Image From Recovery CD* on page 22.

Figure 4. Select Source Partitions Screen

Creati	ng an	Image						×
Selec	ct So	urce Partitior	าร					
Select	t the p	artitions to include	e in the image file.					
Disk	: <u>1 - 1</u> 4	4402 MB ———						
							BAEKUP	Una
115	15.3 N	18 Active NTFS					2,047.3 M	IB Hi 835
		-	1	^				
Disk	Lette	er Label	Туре	Status	Size MB	Used MB U	Jnused MB	Pri/Log
1	₩:		A NTFS	Active	11515.3	842.5	10672.8	Primary
1	*:	BAEKUP	🔦 FAT	None	2,047.3	33.2	2,014.1	Primary
□ 1	*:		🔍 Unallocated	None	839.3	0.0	839.3	Primary
Se	elect <u>A</u>	All Selec	t Non <u>e</u>					
	<u>H</u> elp				< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >		<u>C</u> ancel
_								

Create Backup Image of Working System

To create a backup image file of a working system:

- **1.** In the Select Source Partition screen (Figure 4 on page 12), check the box next the active partition labeled **NTFS**. This will normally be the first partition in the list.
- 2. Click Next.
- **3.** On the Name Image File screen (Figure 5), click Browse to find the backup partition to save the image to.

Creating an Image		×
	Name Image File	
enter	Enter the image filename, specifying the drive and directory. For example: D:\MYIMAGE.PQI. Click Browse to browse the directory tree for the path and filename. Image File:	_
Ŭ.	Browse	
Cento	Image File Comments:	
PowerQ Dep Image ¹		•
Help	< Back Next > Cancel	

- **4.** In the **New Image File** screen (Figure 6), click the down arrow on the **Drives** field.
- 5. Select _\Disk1.part 2 (BACKUP).

Figure 6. New Image File Screen

New Image File		×
File <u>N</u> ame: 6-08-02.PQI	<u>F</u> olders: ヽヽ.ヽdisk1.part2	<u>o</u> k
	🔄 ヽヽ.ヽdisk1.part2 🔄 RECOVERY	<u>C</u> ancel
		Ne <u>w</u> Folder
		Help
		⊻erify
		Properties
List File <u>Typ</u> e:	Drives: 2,014.0 MB Unused	
*.pqi Image Files 💽	N.\disk1.part2	Co <u>m</u> ments >>

- **6.** Select a folder in the backup partition in which to save the image. The **Recovery** folder contains the factory default image. You can also create your own folder, such as **Image**, if desired by clicking the **New Folder** button and naming the folder.
- **7.** In the **File Name**: field enter a descriptive name for the image you are saving with eight characters or less. Using the date, such as 6-08-02 or the software version, is recommended.
- 8. Click OK.

- **9.** Verify the path and image file name are correct on the **Name Image File** screen (Figure 7).
- **10.** You may also add comments about the file if desired by typing in the **Image File Comments:** text box.
- **11.** Press **Next** to continue.

Figure 7. Name Image File Screen

Creating an Image		×
	Name Image File	
enter™	Enter the image filename, specifying the drive and directory. For example: D:\MYIMAGE.PQI. Click Browse to browse the directory tree for the path and filename.	
Ŭ U	Browse	
Cent.	Image File Co <u>m</u> ments:	-
PowerQ Dep Image(- -
Help	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

12. In the **Compress Image File** screen (Figure 8), select **High** compression and click **Next**.

Figure 8. Compress Image File Screen	Figure 8.	Compress	Image	File Screen
--------------------------------------	-----------	-----------------	-------	-------------

Creating an Image			×
	Compress Image File		
PowerQuest DeployCenter ImageCenter	Select the level of compressi No Compression Low Figh Selection Information: — High compression offers a If saving the image file to a compression can be faster Note: The sizes listed are on will vary depending on how	on for the image file below. 1,983.6 MB 1,190.1 MB 991.8 MB 50% average compression rati network drive or removable m than no compression. ly estimates. The actual size for well the data compresses.	992 Disks 596 Disks 496 Disks o. hedia device, high or compressed images
Help		< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >	Cancel

- **13.** This will bring up the **Ready to Create Image File** screen. (not shown).
- **14.** Check the information and click **Finish**. The process will take several minutes to save.
- **15.** When finished, click **OK** and **Exit** from the main menu.
- **16.** Remove the CD from the drive and press **Ctrl/Alt/Delete** on the keyboard or press the **Reset** button on the back of the Menu panel to reset the Menu panel and return to Windows.

You will now have a backup image of your working drive on the backup partition (\\disk1.part2). You may use this backup if there is a hard drive failure or to restore this image to the main partition using the recovery procedures given next.

17. If you are finished using the Recovery CD, it is recommended that you reconfigure the Menu panel BIOS back to the default boot sequence to avoid any boot errors during normal operation. Refer to *Reconfigure BIOS after Using Recovery CD* on page 10 and reconfigure the BIOS back to boot sequence: **C**, **CDROM**, **A**.

Recovery Procedures

Using the **Restore Image** function on the Recovery CD allows you to restore the Menu panel hard drive to one of the following:

- A factory- or user-saved image of the Windows 2000 operating system and Menu panel application from a **Backup** partition, or
- If no backup partition is accessible, a Windows 2000 operating system image from a default GVG image file and a **Backup FAT** partition from the Recovery CD.
- **Note** The default GVG image from the Recovery CD contains the operating system only. It does not include any Zodiak or Kalypso application software. You will need to reload the correct version of Zodiak/Kalypso software from your software distribution CD. If you can't find your software distribution CD the software can be downloaded from ftp://ftp.grassvalleygroup.com/.

Restore Image From Backup Partition

If your Menu panel hard drive has become corrupted, you can attempt to boot up the Menu panel from the Recovery CD to restore either a factory image or a user-saved image from the backup partition as follows:

- 1. Place the Recovery CD-ROM (Part # 063808701) in the Menu panel CD-ROM drive on the right of the Menu panel. Turn off the power and restart the system, or reboot the Menu panel (inside the Main panel lid or on the underside of the Menu panel).
- **Note** If you are using a Menu panel mounted with a Flush Mount kit, you will need to unrack the panel and use the local CD-ROM drive on the right side of the panel. This procedure will not work with the external USB CD-ROM drive.
- 2. The PowerQuest DeployCenter ImageCenter software on the Recovery CD will start automatically on the Menu panel screen (Figure 3 on page 11). You will be given a choice to either **Create Image**, **Restore Image** or **Disk To Disk** (not used in this procedure).
- **Note** The touch screen is no longer operational in this mode. You must use the mouse and keyboard.
- **3.** Click the **Restore Image** button.

4. In the **Select Image File** screen (Figure 9), click **Browse** to locate a recovery image file to restore from.

Figure 9. Sel	ect Image	File
---------------	-----------	------

Restoring an Image		×
	Select Image File	
nter	Enter the image filename, specifying the drive and directory. For example: D:\MYIMAGE.PQI. Click Browse to browse the directory tree for the path and filename.	
Ū, Ū,	Image <u>F</u> ile:	
est oy enter	Image File Comments:	
rerQu DeC		•
		<u> </u>
Help	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

5. In the **Open Image File** screen (Figure 10), click on the **Drives** field to open the pulldown window showing accessible drives and partitions.

Select \\.\disk1.part2 BACKUP. Select the **Recovery** folder. This is where a factory default image will be stored. The factory image was saved before the unit shipped and contains both the Windows 2000 operating system and the Menu panel application.

If you have a user-saved image of your system, locate the folder where it is stored and select it.

Note If no partitions are accessible, you will need to use the default GVG image from the Recovery CD as described in *Restore Default Image From Recovery CD* on page 22.

Open Image File		×
File <u>N</u> ame: Factory.PQI	Eolders: \\.\disk1.part2	<u>K</u>
Factory,PQI	Structure Coverses and	<u>C</u> ancel
	MAGE	Ne <u>w</u> Folder
		Help
		⊻erify
		<u>P</u> roperties
List File <u>Typ</u> e:	Drives: 2,014.0 MB Unused	
*.pqi Image Files 💽	N.\.\disk1.part2	Comments >>

Figure 10. Open Image File Screen

6. Double click the **Recovery** folder (or the folder where you have stored your image file) and select the **Factory.PQI** image file (or your user-saved file) to restore so that it appears in the **File Name:** window and click **OK**.

- 7. The **Select Image File** screen will display with the path to the selected image file to restore from and any comments about the file in the **Image File Comments** field (Figure 11).
- **8.** If this is correct, click **Next**.

Figure 11. Select Image File Screen

Resto	oring an Image		X
		Select Image File	
	nter	Enter the image filename, specifying the drive and directory. For example: D:\MYIMAGE.PQI. Click Browse to browse the directory tree for the path and filename.	
	() ()	Image <u>File: \Disk1.part2\Recovery\Factory.PQI</u>	
		Browse	
	o d e Cer	Image File Comments: Original shipping image with application software X.X.X.	-
	Powe De Imag		
			•
	Help	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

9. This will bring up the **Select Destination Partition or Unallocated Space** display (Figure 12), select the **NTFS** choice as the destination partition.

10. Select Next.

11. You will get a popup message telling you that you must delete the partition to restore the image, click **OK**.

Figure 12. Select Destination Partition

Resta	oring a	n Image							×
Select Destination Partition or Unallocated Space									
			_		•				
Selec	ctades	tination partitio	on or unallocated	d space for t	he image file p	artitions.			
Dis	k 1 - 14	402 MB ——							
							BAEKUP	Una	
11	515.3 M	B Active NTFS					2,047.3 M	8 Hi 833	
	-	, *		_	, ,				
Disk	Lette	r Label	Туре	Status	Size MB	Used MB	Unused MB	Pri/Log	
1	**:		🔍 NTFS	Active	11515.3	842.5	10672.8	Primary	
1	*:	BAEKUP	🔦 FAT	None	2,047.3	33.2	2,014.1	Primary	
1	*:		🚽 🔍 Unallocate	ed None	839.3	0.0	839.3	Primary	
<u>B</u> esize Source Partition <u>D</u> elete Disk Partitions									
									_
	<u>H</u> elp				< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext⇒	>	<u>C</u> ancel	

- **12.** In the **Ready To Restore Image** display (not shown), click **Finish**. The display will return to the main screen for a few seconds and then begin the restoration process. Wait for the restore routine to begin. Do not press the **Restore Image** button in the main screen again.
- **13.** A **Restoring the Image**... status screen will display showing the progress of the restoration process.
- **14.** When the **Image was restored successfully. Would you like to view the results?**, pop-up appears, select **Yes**.
- **15.** Select the **Close** button at the lower right of the Display Drive Information screen.
- **16.** Press **Exit** to bring up the DOS prompt.
- **17.** Remove the CD from the drive and press **Ctrl/Alt/Delete** or press the **Reset** button on the back of the Menu panel to reset the Menu panel and return to Windows.

- **18.** If you have restored the Factory image, you should now have a working Windows 2000 operating system and a Menu panel application. If the software version restored is not the current version, reinstall the latest software using the current software CD. The IP addresses will be the default values entered at the factory. If you do not use the defaults, you will need to reconfigure the correct values as described in *Record IP Addresses* on page 7.
- **19.** Once the system is back up and running in normal operation, it is recommended that you backup your current working system. Refer to *Create Backup Image of Working System* on page 13 for instructions.
- **20.** It is also recommended that you reconfigure the Menu Panel BIOS back to the default boot sequence to avoid any boot errors during normal operation. Refer to *Reconfigure BIOS after Using Recovery CD* on page 10 and reconfigure the BIOS to boot sequence: **C**, **CDROM**, **A**.

Restore Default Image From Recovery CD

If your Menu panel hard drive has become corrupted, first try to restore an image using *Restore Image From Backup Partition* on page 17. If you cannot access a backup partition to restore your hard drive, you will need to use the following procedure to restore a default operating system and install a backup partition.

- **CAUTION** Using the default image from the Recovery CD will erase the hard drive and install an image of the Windows 2000 operating system only. Any user-saved folders, files, shortcuts, and the Menu Panel application will be over-written.You will also need to reinstall Menu Panel software once the hard drive has been restored.
- 1. Place the Recovery CD in the Menu panel CD-ROM drive on the right of the Menu panel and power down and restart the system, or reboot the Menu panel (inside the Main panel lid or on the underside of the Menu panel).
- **Note** If you are using a Menu panel mounted with a Flush Mount kit, you will need to unrack the panel and use the local CD-ROM drive on the right side of the panel. This procedure will not work with the external USB CD-ROM drive.
- 2. The PowerQuest DeployCenter ImageCenter software on the Recovery CD will start automatically on the Menu panel screen (Figure 3 on page 11). You will be given a choice to either **Create Image**, **Restore Image** or **Disk To Disk** (not used in this procedure).
- **Note** The touch screen will no longer be operational in this mode. You must use the mouse and keyboard.
- **3.** Click the **Restore Image** button.

4. In the **Select Image File** screen (Figure 13), click **Browse** to locate a recovery image file to restore from.

Re	estoring an Image		×
		Select Image File	
	nter	Enter the image filename, specifying the drive and directory. For example: D:\MYIMAGE.PQI. Click Browse to browse the directory tree for the path and filename.	
	()	Image <u>F</u> ile:	
) I fe z	Browse	
		Image File Co <u>m</u> ments:	<u> </u>
	wer(ep		
	°⊂ ₹		_
_			<u> </u>
	Help	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

5. In the **Open Image File** screen (Figure 14), click on the **Drives** field to open the pulldown window showing accessible drives and partitions.

6. Select \\.\Pqcd0. This is where the GVG default image is stored on the CD-ROM.

Figure 14.	Open Image F	ile Screen
------------	--------------	------------

Open Image File		×
File <u>N</u> ame: KalZod3.pqi	<u>F</u> olders: \\.\Pqcd0\	<u>0</u> K
🗋 KalZod3.pqi	C IMAGE	<u>C</u> ancel
		Ne <u>w</u> Folder
		Help
		⊻erify
		<u>P</u> roperties
List File <u>Type:</u>	Drives: 0.0 MB Unused	Comments XX
rappi indge riles		Lomments >>

7. Click the **IMAGE** folder and select the **KalZod3.PQI** image file so that it appears in the **File Name:** window and click **OK**.

- **8.** The **Select Image File** screen will display with the path to the selected default CD image file and any comments about the file in the **Image File Comments** field (Figure 15).
- **9.** If this is correct, click **Next**.

Figure 15. Select Image File Screen

Restoring an Image		×
	Select Image File	
nter	Enter the image filename, specifying the drive and directory. For example: D:\MYIMAGE.PQI. Click Browse to browse the directory tree for the path and filename.	
မီ	Image <u>Fi</u> le: \\\Pqcd0\'IMAGE\KalZod3.pqi	
	Browse	
	Image File Comments:	
wer(ep		
°C ₽		
]	
Help	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>C</u> ancel	

- **10.** This will bring up the **Select Image File Partitions** display (Figure 16) which shows the contents of the GVG default backup partition you have selected to restore from.
- **Note** The size of your hard drive and any partitions may be different than what is shown here depending on when your system was manufactured and shipped.
- **11.** Check both the **NTFS** and the **FAT** partitions to restore or click the **Select All** button. This will install a backup **FAT** partition in addition to the main **NTFS** image.
- 12. Click Next.

Figure 16. Select Destination Partition

Restoring an Image					×
Select Image File Par	titions				
Select the image file partition	ns to be restored (CdafX POI	l.			
	QUEIA.FQI —				BACKUP
8016.8 MB Active NTFS					2,007.3 MB Hi
Disk Letter Label	Туре	Status	Size MB	Used MB Unu	sed MB Pri/Log
<u>▶</u> 1 * :	🔍 NTFS	Active	8016.8	648.5 7	7382.2 Primary
☑1 ↔ BAEKUP	🔦 FAT	None	2,007.3	0.3	2,007.3 Primary
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
Select <u>A</u> ll Sel	ect Non <u>e</u>				
			20		
Help			< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	<u> </u>

- **13.** The **Select Destination Partition or Unallocated Space** screen will display. Depending on the status of your hard drive, the display may show an **NTFS** partition with some unallocated space (as shown in Figure 17).
- **14.** Before restoring the GVG default **NTFS** and **FAT** partitions, you will first need to delete any existing partitions. To do this, select the **Delete Disk Partitions** button.

Figure 17. Select Destination Partition

Restoring an Image							
Select Destination Partition or Unallocated Space							
Select a destination partition or unallocated space for the image file partitions.							
Disk 1 - 14402 MB							
11515 3 MR Active NTES					Unallocated		
Disk	Letter Label	Туре	Status	Size MB	Used MB Unus	sed MB Pri/Log	
1	*:	🔍 NTFS	Active	11515.3	842.5 10	672.8 Primary	
1	*:	🔍 Unalloca	ated None	2,886.7	0.0	2,886.7 Primary	
Resize Source Partition Delete Disk Partitions							
						-	
	Help			< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	<u>C</u> ancel	

- **15.** In the **Delete Partitions** screen (not shown) select **Delete All**, **Yes**, and **Next** to the prompts.
- **16.** The display will change to show all unallocated space. Select **Close**.
- **17.** In the Select Destination Partition or Unallocated Space, select Next.
- **18.** A Resize Options popup screen will popup. Select Automatically resize partitions proportionally to fit, and click OK.
- **19.** In the **Ready To Restore Image** display (not shown), click **Finish**. The display will return to the main screen for a few seconds and then begin the restoration process. Wait for the restore routine to begin. Do not press the **Restore Image** button in the main screen again.
- **20.** A **Restoring the Image**... status screen will display showing the progress of the restoration process. It will take about 5 minutes to restore.
- **21.** When the **Image was restored successfully. Would you like to view the results?**, pop-up appears, select **Yes**.
- **22.** Select the **Close** button at the lower right of the Display Drive Information screen.
- 23. Select Exit to bring up the Reboot prompt.
- **24.** Remove the CD from the drive and press the **Reboot** button to reset the Menu panel and return to Windows.

Reinstall Software

Since you have restored the GVG default image from \\.\Pqcd0 to the hard drive, only the Windows 2000 operating system will be installed. You will need to reinstall the Zodiak or Kalypso Menu panel application from the software CD provided with your system or by a software update.

You may also download this software from the Grass Valley Group ftp site onto a read-write CD for installation. Follow the software download instructions as given in the Release Notes that accompany the software.

You may need to reconfigure some Menu panel parameters for new version software. User and Suite Prefs and Eng Setups set up in the Menu panel application are stored on the Video Processor frame hard drive and should always be saved to a Zip drive whenever configuration is done. These settings will not be lost.

Once you have created a backup partition and successfully restored the Windows 2000 operating system, installed the current Kalypso or Zodiak software, and done any necessary configuration, you can create a backup image of the functioning system on the backup partition (see *Create Backup Image* below).

Check IP Addresses

Using the Zodiak or Kalypso Menu panel application, repeat the procedure given in *Record IP Addresses* on page 7 to check or change IP addresses in the Menu panel Eng Setup – System– Config menu and the Windows 2000 TCP/IP to the values necessary for your network.

Create Backup Image

After restoring your operating system and Kalypso or Zodiak menu application, you can backup this working image onto the backup partition as described in *Create a Backup Image File* on page 11.

Reconfigure Menu Panel BIOS

It is also recommended that you reconfigure the Menu Panel BIOS back to the default boot sequence to avoid any boot errors during normal operation. Refer to *Reconfigure BIOS after Using Recovery CD* on page 10 and reconfigure the BIOS to boot sequence: **C**, **CDROM**, **A**. Section 1 — Menu Panel Recovery CD Procedure